
ARTICLE 1. Jakarta Globe (Antigraft Activists Prepare Monas for Anas) 
 

Transitivity System 
   Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1   Anti-corruption activists installed a symbolic 

gallows at the National Monumen (Monas) on 

Sunday as a macabre reminder for former 

Democratic Party chair Anas Urbaningrum. 

X           

2   Anas stepped down from his post as chairman of 

Indonesia's ruling party on Saturday, one day after 

the Corruption Eradication Comission (KPK) 

publicly charged him with allegedly accepting 

bribes. 

X           

3   One day after the Corruption Eradication Comission 

(KPK) publicly charged him with allegedly 

accepting bribes. 

     X      

4   Anas, who was once seen as a promising a member 

of President Susilo Bambang Yudhoyono's party, 

  X         

5   famously, promised to hang himself from Monas         X     

6 if he was found guilty of corruption. X           

7   The Anti-Corruption Youth Movement (Gepak) said 

they were cleaning up Monas to remind Anas of his 

promise.  

      X     

8   they were cleaning up Monas to remind Anas of his 

promise. 

X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

9   "We are trying to help Anas keep his promise,"said 

Toriq Mahmud, the organization's leader. 

      X     

10   We are trying to help Anas keep his promise X           

11   Anas keep his promise X           

12 

  

"We have prepared facilities for him to realize his 

promise by proving a hanging pole and a rope." 

X 

          

13 

  

to realize his promise by proving a hanging pole and 

a rope. 

X 

          

14 

  

The activists gave Anas a second option: publicly 

apologize to the people of Indonesia. 

X 

          

15 

  

"But he must bluntly reveal who was really involved 

in the Hambalang corruption cases," Toriq said 
      X     

16 

  

he must bluntly reveal who was really involved in 

the Hambalang corruption cases 

  

    X     

17 

  

who was really involved in the Hambalang 

corruption cases. X           

18 

  

Anas was charged with allegedly using bribe funds 

to purchase a high-end Toyota SUV. 

 

    X      

19 

  

He repotedly received the funds from construction 

companies Adhi Karya and Wijaya Karya in 

exchange for the contract for the Hambalang sports 

center in Bogor, West Java. 
X           

20 

  

He faces between four and 20 years in prison if 

convicted X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

21 

  

Anas maintains his innocence and claims the 

accusations are part of a plot to oust him from 

Democratic Party. 
  X         

22 and  claims the accusations are part of a plot to oust him 

from Democratic Party.       X     

23 

  

the accusations are part of a plot to oust him from 

Democratic Party.     X       

    TOTAL 12 2 1 8     

 

 

MATERIAL PROCESS 

    Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

1   Anti-

corruption 

activists 

installed a symbolic gallows    at the National Monumen 

(Monas) on Sunday as a 

macabre reminder for former 

Democratic Party chair Anas 

Urbaningrum. 

2   Anas stepped 

down 

from his post as chairman of 

Indonesia's ruling party 

  on Saturday, one day after the 

Corruption Eradication 

Comission (KPK) publicly 

charged him with allegedly 

accepting bribes. 

6 if he was 

found 

 

guilty of 

corruption. 

  



8   they  were 

cleaning 

up 

Monas to remind Anas of his 

promise. 

    

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

10   We  are trying 

 

to help Anas keep 

his promise 

  

11   Anas keep his promise     

12   We  have 

prepared  

facilities for him to realize his 

promise by proving a hanging 

pole and a rope. 

    

13     proving a hanging pole and a rope     

14   The 

activists 

gave   Anas a second 

option: publicly 

apologize to the 

people of 

Indonesia. 

  

17   who was really 

involved 

    in the Hambalang corruption 

cases 

19   He  repotedly 

received 

the funds from construction 

companies Adhi Karya and 

Wijaya Karya in exchange for the 

contract for the Hambalang sports 

center in Bogor, West Java. 

    

20   He faces   between four and 

20 years in prison 

if convicted 

  



 

 

 

MENTAL 

PROCESS 

     

Clause No. Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

4   Anas, who was once seen as a promising a member of 

President Susilo Bambang 

Yudhoyono's party 

  

21   Anas maintains his innocence   

 

 

RELATIONAL (IDENTIFYING) PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Identified Process Identifier Circumstances 

23   the accusations are part of a plot to oust him from 

Democratic Party. 

  

 

VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 
Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstance 



3 

 

the 

Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission 

(KPK) 

publicly 

charged  

him with allegedly accepting 

bribes  
One day after 

Clause 

No. 
Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver Circumstance 

5 
 

(Anas) 
famously 

reported  
to hang himself from Monas 

  

7 
 

The Anti-

Corruption 

Youth 

Movement 

(Gepak) 

said 
 

they were cleaning up Monas 

to remind Anas of his 

promise. 
  

9 
 

Toriq 

Mahmud, the 

organization's 

leader 

said 

"We are trying 

to help Anas 

keep his 

promise," 

   

15 
 

Toriq said 

"But he must 

bluntly reveal 

who was really 

involved in the 

Hambalang 

corruption 

cases," 

   

16 
 

he 
must bluntly 

reveal  

who was really involved in the 

Hambalang corruption cases   



18 
 

Anas was charged 
 

with allegedly using bribe 

funds to purchase a high-end 

Toyota SUV 
  

Clause 

No. 
Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver Circumstance 

22 and (Anas) claims 
 

the accusations are part of a 

plot to oust him from 

Democratic Party. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ARTICLE 2. Jakarta Globe (Anas Wants Hambalang Graft Case to Be 'Free 
From Politics') 

 

Transitivity System 

    

         Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1   Chairman of Democratic Party Anas Urbaningrum asked 

people on Wednesday to stop injecting politics into the 

investigation of the graft-laden Hambalang Sport Center 

project. 

      X     

2   "We should follow the process painstakingly and objectively 

in a way to keep this legal process on the right track," Anas 

said as he arrived at the Corruption Eradication Commission 

(KPK) office for a second round questioning. 

      X     

3   We should follow the process painstakingly and objectively 

in a way to keep this legal process on the right track 

X           

4   he arrived at the Corruption Eradication Commission (KPK) 

office for a second round questioning. 

X           

5   Anas also said he hoped the commission would speed up the 

investigation to clear his name. 

      X     

6   he hoped the comission would speed up the investigation to 

clear his name. 

  X         

7   the comission would speed up the investigation to clear his 

name. 

X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

8   "I hope Hambalang [investigation] process can be done 

quickly and totally so that my status is clear," Anas said. 

      X     

9   I hope Hambalang [investigation] process can be done 

quickly and totally so that my status is clear 

  X         

10  Hambalang investigation can be done quickly and totally X      

11 so that my status is clear     X       

12   "The KPK can then move on to other cases." X           

13 But Anas ' case has stemmed from his political position - and his 

party. 

X           

14   He was accused by former Democratic treasurer and fellow 

party member Muhammad Nazaruddin for receiving a 

kickback of Rp 100 billion ($10.7 million) from construction 

company Adhi Karya in relation to the Hambalang project. 

      X     

15 and fellow party member Muhammad Nazaruddin for receiving a 

kickback of Rp 100 billion ($10.7 million) from construction 

company Adhi Karya in relation to the Hambalang project. 

X           

16   Nazaruddin also accused Anas of using the money for his 

campaign for the party's chairman slot. 

      X     

17 

  

Anas' plight has also been called an anchor to the 

Democratic Party's integrity. 
      X     

18 

  

President Susilo Bambang Yudhoyono recently said that 

members alleged involvement in corruption has caused the 

party's popularity to sink. 
      X     



 

 

 

      

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

19 

  

members alleged involvement in corruption has caused the 

party's popularity to sink X           

20   

Yudhoyono, who is the head of Democratic Party's advisory 

board, said that party members who could not keep 

themselves away from corruption should resign. 
      X     

21   

Yudhoyono, who is the head of Democratic Party's advisory 

board     X       

22   

 party members who could not keep themselves away from 

corruption should resign. X           

23 Though  Yudhoyono did not mention Anas by name,       X     

24   

senior party member Ruhut Sitompul said that Yudhoyono 

was specifically referring to Anas, among several other 

members.       X     

25   

Yudhoyono was specifically referring to Anas, among 

several other members. 

 

    X      

    TOTAL 9 2 2 12     

 

 

 

 

 



MATERIAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

3   we should 

follow 

 

 the process 

painstakingly and 

objectively in a way to 

keep this legal process 

on the right track 

  

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

4   he arrived     at the 

Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission 

(KPK) 

7   the commission would 

speed up 

the investigation to 

clear his name 

    

10   Hambalang investigation can be 

done 

quickly and totally     

12   the KPK can then 

move on 

to other cases 

 

  

13 but Anas' case has 

stemmed   

from his political 

position -and his party. 

  

15 and fellow party member Muhammad 

Nazaruddin 

for 

receiving 

 

a kickback of Rp 100 

billion ($10.7 million) 

from construction 

company Adhi Karya in 

relation to the 

Hambalang project. 

  

19   members alleged involvement in has the party's popularity 

 

  



corruption caused 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

22   party members who could not 

keep 

  themselves away from 

corruption should resign 

  

 

MENTAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

6   he hoped the commission would 

speed up the investigation 

to clear his name 

  

9   I hope Hambalang investigation 

process can be done 

quickly and totally so that 

my status is clear. 

  

 

RELATIONAL (IDENTIFYING) PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Identified Process Identifier Circumstances 

11 so 

that 

my status is clear   

21   Yudhoyono, who is the head of Democratic 

Party's advisory board 

  

 



VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

1   Chairman of Democratic Party 

Anas Urbaningrum 

asked   people on 

Wednesday to stop 

injecting politics 

into the 

investigation of the 

graft-laden 

Hambalang Sport 

Center project. 

  on Wednesday 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver Circumstances 

2   Anas  said "We should 

follow the 

process 

painstakingly 

and objectively 

in a way to keep 

this legal 

process on the 

right track," 

    as he arrived at 

the Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission 

(KPK) office 

5   Anas  also said   he hoped the 

commission would 

speed up the 

investigation to 

clear his name. 

    

        



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

8   Anas  said "I hope 

Hambalang 

[investigation] 

process can be 

done quickly 

and totally so 

that my status is 

clear," 

      

Clause 

No. 
Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver Circumstances 

14   He was 

accused 

   by former 

Democratic 

treasurer and fellow 

party member 

Muhammad 

Nazaruddin for 

receiving a 

kickback of Rp 100 

billion ($10.7 

million) from 

construction 

company Adhi 

Karya in relation to 

the Hambalang 

project. 

    



        

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

16   Nazaruddin  also 

accused 

  Anas of using the 

money for his 

campaign for the 

party's chairman 

slot. 

    

17   Anas' plight has also 

been called 

  an anchor to the 

Democratic Party's 

integrity. 

    

18   President Susilo Bambang 

Yudhoyono  

recently 

said 

  that members 

alleged involvement 

in corruption has 

caused the party's 

popularity to sink. 

    

20   Yudhoyono, who is the head 

of Democratic Party's advisory 

board 

said   that party members 

who could not keep 

themselves away 

from corruption 

should resign. 

    

23 though Yudhoyono did not 

mention 

  Anas by name     

24   Senior party member Ruhut 

Sitompul  

said    that Yudhoyono 

was specifically 

referring to Anas, 

among several other 

members. 

    

25   Yudhoyono was 

specifically 

referring 

  to Anas, among 

several other 

members. 

    

 



 

 

Article 3.  JAKARTA GLOBE (Anas Quizzed Over House Role in 
Hambalang) 
 

Transitivity System 
     

         Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1   Anas Urbaningrum the former Democratic Party 

chairman, faced a four-hour grilling on Monday by 

antigraft investigators over a graft scandal that occured 

while he served at the House of Representatives 

X           

2   he served at the House od Representatives and for which 

he has been charged 

X           

3 and for which he has been charged       X     

4   Anas arrived at the Corruption Eradication Commission 

(KPK) office in South Jakarta just before 1 p.m.  

X           

5   accompanied by his lawyer, Firman Wijaya and Saan 

Mustofa, a deputy secretary general of the Democratic 

Party. 

X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

6   He told reporters that he had been called in to testify as a 

witness against three other suspects charged with 

corruption in connection with the project to build a Rp 2.5 

trillion ($260 million) sports center in Hamblang, Bogor 

district. 

      X     

7   he had been called in to testify as a witness against three 

other suspects charged with corruption in connection with 

the project to build a Rp 2.5 trillion ($260 million) sports 

center in Hamblang, Bogor district 

      X     

8   three other suspects charged with corruption in 

connection with the project to build a Rp 2.5 trillion ($260 

million) sports center in Hamblang, Bogor district 

      X     

9   [The KPK] asked me about my position on House 

Commission X and as the chairman of the House 

Democrats (Anas Urbaningrum) 

      X     

10   He said that of the three suspects, he was only acquainted 

with one: Andi Mallarangeng, the former sports minister. 

      X     

11  he was only acquainted with one: Andi Mallarangeng, 

the former sports minister. 

X      

         



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

12   The two others are Deddy Kusdinar, a former ministry 

official, and Teuku Bagus Muhammad Noer, a director at 

Adhi Karya, one of the two state construction companies 

that won the contract to build the sports center. 

    X       

13   one of the two state construction companies that won the 

contract to build the sports center. 

X           

14   “Because I was testifying about three people, there were a 

lot of questions and it took quite long,” Anas said. 

      X     

15 Because I was testifying about three people       X     

16   there were a lot of questions     X       

17 and it took quite long. X           

18   “I hope that my testimony can be of use to the KPK in 

investigating this case.” 

  X         

19   He added that the investigators also asked him about his 

time as a legislator on House Commission X, 

      X     

20  The investigators also asked him about his time as a 

legislator on House Commission X 

   X   

21   a legislator on House Commission X, which oversees 

sports affairs and which approved the vastly inflated 

budget for the construction project that was initially 

expected to cost just Rp 300 billion. 

X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

22 and which approved the vastly inflated budget for the 

construction project that was initially expected to cost just 

Rp 300 billion. 

X           

23   budget for the construction project that was initially 

expected to cost just Rp 300 billion. 

  X         

24   “They asked me about my position on House Commission 

X and as the chairman of the House Democrats. They 

wanted to know what my duties were in both roles,” Anas 

said. 

      X     

25   They asked me about my position on House Commission 

X and as the chairman of the House Democrats. 

      X     

26   They wanted to know what my duties were in both roles   X         

27  My duties were in both roles   X    

28   In their questioning last month of Adhyaksa Dault, Andi‟s 

predecessor, the KPK investigators also probed the role 

of the House in the Hambalang case 

X           

29   indicating that they could name more legislators as 

possible suspects in the matter. 

 X          

30  They could name more legislators as possible suspects in 

the matter 

   X   

31   Anas has been accused by Muhammad Nazaruddin, his 

former business partner and the Democrats‟ ex-treasurer 

of being involved in rigging the awarding of the 

Hambalang contract in exchange for Rp 100 billion in 

bribes. 

      X     

         



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

32   being involved in rigging the awarding of the Hambalang 

contract in exchange for Rp 100 billion in bribes. 

X           

33   Nazaruddin is currently serving a seven-year prison 

sentence for a separate bid-rigging case linked to another 

Sports Ministry project. 

    X       

34   Andi, a fellow Democrat, was also fingered by 

Nazaruddin 

      X     

35 

 

and resigned last December after being named a suspect. X           

36   The Supreme Audit Agency (BPK) has concluded the 

project caused Rp 243 billion in state losses. 

      X     

37   It attributed the losses to problems in acquiring the land 

for the sports center, irregularities in the Sports Ministry‟s 

application for multi-year financing, and the questionable 

appointment of contractors. 

X           

    TOTAL 13 4 4 16     

 

MATERIAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

1   Anas Urbaningrum the former 

Democratic Party chairman 

faced a four-hour grilling 

on Monday by 

antigraft 

investigators over a 

graft scandal that 

occured while he 

served at the House 

    



of Representatives 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

2   he served      at the House of 

Representatives 

and for which he 

has been charged. 

4   Anas arrived     at the Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission 

(KPK) office in 

South Jakarta just 

before 1 p.m. 

5   (Anas) accompanied 

  

by his lawyer, 

Firman Wijaya 

and Saan 

Mustofa, a deputy 

secretary general 

of the Democratic 

Party. 

  

11   he was only 

acquainted 

  

with one: Andi 

Mallarangeng, the 

former sports 

minister 

  

13   one of the two state construction 

companies that 

won the contract to build 

the sports center   

  

17 and it took quite long     



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

21   a legislator on House Commission 

X, which 

overseas    sports affairs and 

which approved 

the vastly inflated 

budget for the 

construction 

project that was 

initially expected 

to cost just Rp 

300 billion. 

  

22 and    which 

approved 

  the vastly inflated 

budget for the 

construction 

project that was 

initially expected 

to cost just Rp 

300 billion. 

  

28   the KPK investigators probed   the role of the 

House in the 

Hambalang case 

  

32   (he) being 

involved 

  in rigging the 

awarding of the 

Hambalang 

contract in 

exchange for Rp 

100 billion in 

bribes 

  

35 and   resigned 

  

last December 

after being named 

  



a suspect. 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

37   it attributed the losses to 

problems in 

acquiring the land for 

the sports center, 

irregularities in the 

Sports Ministry‟s 

application for multi-

year financing, and 

the questionable 

appointment of 

contractors.   

  

 

MENTAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

18   I hope that my testimony can be 

used to the KPK 

in investigating this case 

23   budged for the construction project that was 

initially 

expected 

to cost just Rp 300 billion   

26   They wanted to 

know 

what my duties were in both 

roles 

  



      

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

29   Indicating That they could name more 

legislators as possible 

suspects in the matter 

 

 

RELATIONAL (IDENTIFYING) PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Identified Process Identifier Circumstances 

12   The two others are  Deddy Kusdinar, a former 

ministry official, and Teuku 

Bagus Muhammad Noer, a 

director at Adhi Karya, one 

of the two state construction 

companies that won the 

contract to build the sports 

center. 

  

16   There were a lot of questions   

27   what my duties were in both roles   

33   Nazaruddin is currently serving a seven-

year prison sentence for a 

separate bid-rigging case 

linked to another Sports 

Ministry project. 

  

 

 



VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstanc

es 

3 and he has been 

charged 

  

  

    

6   he told   that he had 

been called in 

to testify as a 

witness 

against three 

other suspects 

charged with 

corruption in 

connection 

with the 

project to 

build a Rp 2.5 

trillion ($260 

million) sports 

center in 

Hambalang, 

Bogor district. 

reporters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

        



Clause 

No. 

 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstanc

es 

7   he had been 

called 

   in to testify as 

a witness 

against three 

other suspects 

charged with 

corruption in 

connection 

with the 

project to 

build a Rp 2.5 

trillion ($260 

million) sports 

center in 

Hamblang, 

Bogor district 

    

8   three other suspects charged   with 

corruption in 

connection 

with the 

project to 

build a Rp 2.5 

trillion ($260 

million) sports 

center in 

Hamblang, 

Bogor district 

    



Clause 

No. 

 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstanc

es 

9   The KPK asked   about my 

position on 

House 

Commission X 

and as the 

chairman of 

the House 

Democrats 

(Anas 

Urbaningrum) 

me   

10   He said   that of the 

three suspects, 

he was only 

acquainted 

with one: Andi 

Mallarangeng, 

the former 

sports 

minister. 

    

14   Anas said “Because I was 

testifying about 

three people, 

there were a lot 

of questions and 

it took quite 

long,” 

      

        



        

Clause 

No. 

 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstanc

es 

15 because I was 

testifying  

  about three 

people, there 

were a lot of 

questions and 

it took quite 

long 

    

19   He added   that the 

investigators 

also asked him 

about his time 

as a legislator 

on House 

Commission X 

    

20   the investigators also 

asked 

  about his time 

as a legislator 

on House 

Commission X 

him   

24   Anas said “They asked me 

about my 

position on 

House 

Commission X 

and as the 

chairman of the 

House 

Democrats. They 

wanted to know 

      



what my duties 

were in both 

roles,” 

Clause 

No. 

 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstanc

es 

25   They asked   about my 

position on 

House 

Commission X 

and as the 

chairman of 

the House 

Democrats. 

me   

30  They could 

name 

 more 

legislators as 

possible 

suspects in the 

matter  

  

31   Anas has been 

accused 

  by 

Muhammad 

Nazaruddin, 

his former 

business 

partner and the 

Democrats‟ 

ex-treasurer of 

being involved 

    



in rigging the 

awarding of 

the 

Hambalang 

contract in 

exchange for 

Rp 100 billion 

in bribes. 

34   Andi, a fellow Democrat was also 

fingered 

  by Nazaruddin     

35 and   resigned   last December 

after being 

named a 

suspect. 

    

        

36  The Supreme Audit Agency 

(BPK)  

has 

conclude 

 The project 

caused Rp 243 

billion in state 

losses. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ARTICLE 1. THE JAKARTA POST(Anas Arrives at KPK for further 
questioning) 
 

Transitivity System 

 

 

     Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1   Democratic Party chairman, Anas Urbaningrum, arrived at the 

Corruption Eradication Commission's (KPK) headquarters on 

Wednesday at 9:55 a.m for second round of questioning over 

graft allegations surrounding the construction of the Hambalang 

Sports Complex in West Java. 

X           

2   "I'm happy that the information gathered from me during the 

previous questioning session will be deepened. It shows that my 

information has helped the KPK to uncover what actually 

happened with the Hambalang case," he told reporters before 

entering the commission's building in Jakarta 

      X     

3   that the information gathered from me X           

4   during the previous questioning session will be deepened X           

5   It shows that my information has helped the KPK to uncover 

what actually happened with the Hambalang case   X         



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause 
Mat Men R V B E 

6   my information has helped the KPK to uncover what actually 

happened with the Hambalang case X           

7   He also thanked the KPK for working in a speedy and 

professional manner to solve the case        X     

8 so that the commission could follow up on a number of other important 

cases. 
X           

9   "What I want to emphasize is that the KPK has to investigate the 

Hambalang case with objectivity in line with prevailing legal 

procedures," Anas said.  
      X     

10   What I want to emphasize is that the KPK has to investigate the 

Hambalang case with objectivity in line with prevailing legal 

procedures 
      X     

11   the KPK has to investigate the Hambalang case with objectivity 

in line with prevailing legal procedures X           

12   Former Democratic Party treasurer Muhammad Nazaruddin, who 

was convicted for accepting bribes surrounding the SEA Games' 

athletes' village graft case, repetedly accused Anas of having 

been involved in the Rp 1.52 trillion (US$161.12 million) 

Hambalang project. 

X           

13 repetedly accused Anas of having been involved in the Rp 1.52 trillion 

(US$161.12 million) Hambalang project.       X     

14   Anas of having been involved in the Rp 1.52 trillion 

(US$161.12 million) Hambalang project. X         
 

  

   

 

       



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause 

Mat Men R V B E 

15   Nazaruddin alleged that the money Anas received from the 

project was spent on financing his campaign and election to 

become party chairman during the 2010 Democratic Party 

congress in Bandung. 

      X     

    TOTAL 8 1   6     

 

MATERIAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

1   Democratic Party chairman, Anas 

Urbaningrum, 

arrived      at the 

Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission's 

(KPK) 

headquarters 

on Wednesday 

at 9:55 a.m for 

second round 

of questioning 

over graft 

allegations 

surrounding 

the 

construction 

of the 

Hambalang 

Sports 

Complex in 



West Java. 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

3   that the information gathered   from me   

4     will be 

deepened 

    during the 

previous 

questioning 

session 

6   my information has helped  the KPK to uncover 

what actually 

happened with the 

Hambalang case 

  

  

8 so 

that 

the commission could 

follow up 

  on a number of 

other important 

cases. 

  

11   The KPK has to 

investigate 

  the Hambalang 

case with 

objectivity in 

line with 

prevailing legal 

procedures 

  

12   Former Democratic Party treasurer 

Muhammad Nazaruddin, who 

was 

convicted 

  

 for accepting 

bribes 

surrounding the 

SEA Games' 

athletes' village 

graft case, 

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

14   Anas of having 

been 

involved 

    in the Rp 1.52 

trillion 

(US$161.12 

million) 

Hambalang 

project. 

 

MENTAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

5   It shows that my information has 

helped the KPK to uncover 

what actually happened 

with the Hambalang case 

  

 

VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

2   he told "I'm happy that the 

information gathered 

from me during the 

previous questioning 

session will be 

deepened. It shows 

that my information 

  reporters before 

entering the 

commission's 

building in 

Jakarta 



has helped the KPK 

to uncover what 

actually happened 

with the Hambalang 

case," 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

7   he also 

thanked 

  the KPK for working in a 

speedy and professional 

manner to solve the case  

    

9   Anas said "What I want to 

emphasize is that the 

KPK has to 

investigate the 

Hambalang case with 

objectivity in line 

with prevailing legal 

procedures,"  

      

10    I want to 

emphasize 

  

 is that the KPK has to 

investigate the Hambalang 

case with objectivity in line 

with prevailing legal 

procedures, 

    

13     accused   of having been involved in 

the Rp 1.52 trillion 

(US$161.12 million) 

Hambalang project. 

Anas 

  

15   Nazaruddin alleged   that the money Anas 

received from the project 

was spent on financing his 

campaign and election to 

  

  



become party chairman 

during the 2010 Democratic 

Party congress in Bandung 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Article 2. THE JAKARTA POST (Anas resigns as Democratic Party 
chief) 
 

     

  
Transitivity System 

      Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1   After spending the night in silence following the 

Corruption Eradication Commission's (KPK) 

announcement  

X           

2   That he had been named a suspect        X     

3   Anas Urbaningrum has finally announced his resignation 

from the post of the Democratic Party chief. 

      X     

4   "My personal ethical standards, which run in harmony 

with the party's integrity pact, led me to quit my job as 

party chief once the KPK had named me a suspect. I 

officially announce my resignation from the post," Anas 

told a press conference on Saturday. 

      X     

5   My personal ethical standards, which run in harmony with 

the party's integrity pact, led me to quit my job as party 

chief once the KPK had named me a suspect. 

 X          

6   the KPK had named me a suspect.       X     

7    I officially announce my resignation from the post       X     

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

8   Anas then thanked everyone in the party for their support 

throughout the last two-and-a half- years. 

      X     

9   He expected that whoever would replace him as party 

chairman would be able to perform better than he did. 

  X         

10   whoever would replace him as party chairman would be 

able to perform better than he did. 

X           

11   whoever would replace him as party chairman X           

12   Commenting on his legal status as a graft suspect,       X     

13   Anas unveiled that despite the accusations of his 

involvement in graft cases, 

  X         

14   he was confident that he would be cleared.    X        

15   Anas said that he had nothing to worry about simply        X     

16 because he had nothing to do with the accusations,  X         

17   which were mainly made by former party colleague 

Muhammad Nazaruddin, 

X           

18   who had been sentenced to prison over graft accusations.      X      

19   "I knew that I would be named a suspect after the two 

were announcements made, the first announcement urging 

the KPK to immediately define my legal status and the 

ssecond going even further by ordering me to focus on my 

legal problems, as if I had already been named a suspect," 

he said. 

      X     

20   I knew that I would be named a suspect   X         

21   I would be named a suspect       X     

 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

22   after the two were  announcements made, the first 

announcement urging the KPK to immediately define my 

legal status and the ssecond going even further by ordering 

me to focus on my legal problems 

X           

23 if  I had already been named a suspect.       X     

24   Anas was referring to Democratic Party chief patron 

Susilo Bambang Yudhoyono, 

      X     

25   who made the two announcements X           

26 Therefore Anas rest assured that his legal status was the result of 

political work rather than law enforcement. 

  X         

27   his legal status was the result of political work rather than 

law enforcement. 

    X       

28   "It doesn't take a genius to be able to see that my case is 

more political action than legal action," he said. 

      X     

29   It doesn't take a genius to be able to see  X           

30   that my case is more political action than legal action     X       

31   Anas then cited that from a political perspective,       X     

32   his legal status could be seen as the climax of the internal 

resentment 

  X         

33   that he had sensed from the moment he claimed the 

chairman post in 2010. 

  X         

34  He claimed the chairman post in 2010    X   

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

35   "I have felt that my chairmanship was actually unwanted," 

he said. 

      X     

36   I have felt that my chairmanship was actually unwanted   X         

37 But then he refused to elaborate, saying that there will be a 

proper time 

for him to unveil the rest of the story 

      X     

38  saying that there will be a proper time for him to unveil 

the rest of the story. 

   X   

39   saying that there will be a proper time for him to unveil 

the rest of the story. 

   X        

40   At the end of his speech, Anas said that what has 

happened to him was only the beginning, and was still far 

from the end. 

      X     

41   what has happened to him was only the beginning, and 

was still far from the end 

X           

42  Was only the beginning   X    

43 and was still far from the end X      

44   “This is like opening the first page of a book. There are so 

many pages waiting to be unveiled,” he said. 

      X     

45   This is like opening the first page of a book.     X       

46   There are so many pages waiting to be unveiled.     X       

47   The statement then opened the possibility X           

48   that more party officials could be found guilty in days to 

come. 

X           

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

    TOTAL 13 7 7 21     

 

MATERIAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

1     spending   the night in 

silence following 

the Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission's 

(KPK) 

announcement 

  

5 

  My personal ethical standards, 

which run in harmony with the 

party's integrity pact, 

led me to quit   my job as party 

chief once the 

KPK had named 

me a suspect.   

10 

  whoever would replace him as 

party chairman 

would be able to perform better than 

he did. 

  

  

11   whoever would replace him as party chairman     

16 

because he had nothing to 

do 

  with the 

accusations,   

17 

    which were 

mainly made 

  

 by former party 

colleague 

Muhammad 

Nazaruddin   

 

     

 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

22 

  after the two were  

announcements 

made 

the first announcement 

urging the KPK to 

immediately define my 

legal status and the 

ssecond going even 

further by ordering me 

to focus on my legal 

problems 

  

  

25   who made the two announcements     

29 

  it doesn't take  a genius to be able to 

see 

  

  

41 

  what has happened to him was only the 

beginning, and was still 

far from the end     

43 and   was still far from the end     

47   The statement  then opened the possibility     

48   Thar more party officials could be found guilty in days to come     

 

MENTAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

9   he expected that whoever would replace 

him as party chairman would 

be able to perform better than 

he did. 

  

13   Anas unveiled that despite the accusations of 

his involvement in graft 

cases, 

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

20   I knew that I would be named a 

suspect 

  

26   Anas rest assure that his legal status was the 

result of political work rather 

than law enforcement. 

  

32   his legal status could be seen as the climax of the internal 

resentment 

  

33   that he had been 

sensed 

from the moment he claimed 

the chairman post in 2010. 

  

36   I have felt that my chairmanship was 

actually unwanted 

  

 

RELATIONAL (IDENTIFYING) PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Identified Process Identifier Circumstances 

27   his legal status was 

the result of political work 

rather than law enforcement.   

30   that my case is more political action than 

legal action 

  

39   there will be a proper time for him to 

unveil the rest of the story. 

  

 

 

 



RELATIONAL (ATTRIBUTIVE) PROCESS 

Clause Conj. Carrier Process Attribute Circumstances 

14   he was confident that he would be cleared   

42     was only the beginning   

45   this is like opening the first page of a book.   

46   there are  so many pages waiting to be 

unveiled. 

  

 

VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

2   he had been 

named 

  a suspect     

3   Anas Urbaningrum has finally  

announced 

   his resignation 

from the post 

of the 

Democratic 

Party chief. 

    

4   Anas  told "My personal ethical 

standards, which run 

in harmony with the 

party's integrity 

pact, led me to quit 

my job as party 

chief once the KPK 

had named me a 

suspect. I officially 

announce my 

resignation from the 

post," 

  a press 

conference 

on Saturday 



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

6   The KPK had named   me a suspect     

7   I officially 

announce 

  my resignation 

from the post 

    

8   Anas then thanked   everyone in the 

party for their 

support 

throughout the 

last two-and-a 

half- years. 

    

12     Commenting   on his legal 

status as a graft 

suspect 

    

15   Anas said   that he had 

nothing to 

worry about 

simply 

    

18   who had been 

sentenced 

  to prison over 

graft 

accusations. 

    

19   he said "I knew that I would 

be named a suspect 

after the two were 

announcements 

made, the first 

announcement 

urging the KPK to 

immediately define 

my legal status and 

the ssecond going 

even further by 

ordering me to focus 

      



on my legal 

problems, as if I had 

already been named 

a suspect," 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

21   I  would be 

named 

  a suspect     

23 if I had already 

been named 

  a suspect     

24   Anas was 

referring 

  to Democratic 

Party chief 

patron Susilo 

Bambang 

Yudhoyono 

    

28   he said "It doesn't take a 

genius to be able to 

see that my case is 

more political action 

than legal action," 

      

31   Anas then cited   that from a 

political 

perspective 

    

34   he  claimed   the chairman 

post  

  in 2010 

35   he said "I have felt that my 

chairmanship was 

actually unwanted," 

      

37 but he  refused   to elaborate     



then 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

38     saying   that there will 

be a proper 

time for him to 

unveil the rest 

of the story. 

    

40   Anas said   that what has 

happened to 

him was only 

the beginning, 

and was still far 

from the end. 

  at the end of 

his speech 

44   he said “This is like 

opening the first 

page of a book. 

There are so many 

pages waiting to be 

unveiled,” 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 Article 3. The Jakarta Post (Anas says the has just begun) 

 

Transitivity System 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Process 

Mat Men R V B E 

1.   A day after being criminally charged by 

the Corruption Eradication 

Commission (KPK),  
      X     

2.   Anas Urbaningrum on Saturday stepped 

down from his position as Democratic 

Party chairman X           

3. but warned his foes that his downfall was 

not the end of the ongoing political 

struggle within the ruling party.       X     

4.   his downfall was not the end of the 

ongoing political struggle within the 

ruling party     X       

5   Anas, who has been accused of 

accepting a gratuity from the 

construction firm that won the tender for 

the graft-ridden Hambalang sports 

complex project       X     



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

6    the construction firm that won the tender 

for the graft-ridden Hambalang sports 

complex project X           

7    while serving as a lawmaker in 2009, X           

8   announced his resignation in a press 

conference attended by his loyalists at 

the party‟s central executive office in 

Jakarta.       X     

9   a press conference attended by his 

loyalists at the party‟s central executive 

office in Jakarta. X           

10   Donning the blue Democratic Party 

jacket, Anas told reporters        X     

11   Donning the blue Democratic Party 

jacket X           

12   he knew that he would be named a 

suspect before the KPK announced it on 

Friday, suggesting that it was part of a 

systematic plot against him.   X         

13   he would be named a suspect before the 

KPK announced it on Friday, suggesting 

that it was part of a systematic plot 

against him.       X     

14   before the KPK announced it on Friday       X     

15   it was part of a systematic plot against 

him.     X       

16   “I had known since the party‟s supreme 

assembly issued a decision containing a 

provision ordering me to focus on my 

legal problems,” he said,       X     



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

17   I had known since the party‟s supreme 

assembly issued a decision containing a 

provision ordering me to focus on my 

legal problems   X         

18   referring to party chief patron and 

supreme assembly chairman President 

Susilo Bambang Yudho-yono‟s eight 

policies to restore the party‟s reputation 

and electability.       X     

19   “It doesn‟t take a genius to be able to 

connect the dots, to see that all of these 

actions have been orchestrated against 

me,” he said.       X     

20   It doesn’t take a genius to be able to 

connect the dots, to see that all of these 

actions have been orchestrated against 

me X           

21   all of these actions have been 

orchestrated against me       X     

22 But Anas made it clear that “any kind of 

orchestration, no matter how 

sophisticated or how powerful the people 

behind it are, will surely be overcome X           

23   The young politician said the KPK‟s 

decision to name him a graft suspect was 

not the end of his battle.       X     

24   the KPK‟s decision to name him a graft 

suspect was not the end of his battle.       X     

25   a graft suspect was not the end of his     X       



battle. 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

26   Today, I am making it clear X           

27   that this is just the beginning      X       

28 and this is still very far from the end.     X       

29   Like a book, we have merely flipped 

opened the first page. X           

30   There are so many pages waiting to be 

unveiled, for our own good.     X       

31   In the following days, this party will be 

tested. X           

32   We will see if it really adheres to its 

„clean, smart and ethical‟ slogan.   X         

33 if  it really adheres to its „clean, smart and 

ethical‟ slogan. X           

34   We will learn if it is instead just the 

opposite.   X         

35 if it is instead just the opposite.     X       

36   Siti Zuhro, a political analyst from the 

Indonesian Institute of Sciences (LIPI), 

said that Anas‟ statement could be seen 

as a sign that he would spill the beans on 

his political rivals within the party, 

including President Yudhoyono and his 

family, and supporters.       X     

37   Anas‟ statement could be seen as a sign 

that he would spill the beans on his 

political rivals within the party, including 

President Yudhoyono and his family, and 

supporters.   X         



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

38   he would spill the beans on his political 

rivals within the party, including 

President Yudhoyono and his family, and 

supporters. X           

39   “Anas was basically saying that he 

would, little by little, unveil the party‟s 

dirty laundry to the public,” she said.       X     

40   Anas was basically saying that he 

would, little by little, unveil the party‟s 

dirty laundry to the public       X     

41   Yudhoyono, as the party‟s supreme 

assembly chairman, has intensified 

communications with senior party 

members known to be his loyalists and 

eight other members of the assembly 

following Anas‟ statement.  X           

42   senior party members known to be his 

loyalists   X         

43   On Saturday night, assembly members 

met at Yudhoyono‟s residence in Cikeas, 

West Java. X           

44   Earlier, House of Representatives 

Speaker Marzuki Alie said that the 

meeting was supposed to be held on 

Sunday.       X     

45   the meeting was supposed to be held on 

Sunday. X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

46   The assembly would be preparing 

organizational steps following Anas‟ 

resignation, such as appointing an acting 

chairman before holding an 

extraordinary congress to elect Anas‟ 

definitive successor, according to 

Marzuki. X           

47   Sources within the party, however, said 

that Yudhoyono and his close supporters 

had been launching efforts to secure 

support from party branches in 

provinces, municipalities and regencies 

in hopes that support from the regional 

executives could be secured during the 

upcoming election.       X     

48   Yudhoyono and his close supporters had 

been launching efforts to secure support 

from party branches in provinces, 

municipalities and regencies in hopes 

that support from the regional executives 

could be secured during the upcoming 

election. X           

49 and regencies in hopes that support from the 

regional executives   X         

50   the regional executives could be secured 

during the upcoming election. X           



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

51   A party source said that later on 

Saturday, Yudhoyono talked with 

various party provincial leaders in a 

teleconference from his home.       X     

52   Yudhoyono talked with various party 

provincial leaders in a teleconference 

from his home.       X     

53   According to the source, the 

extraordinary congress is slated to be 

held on Tuesday in Bali. X           

54   Marzuki himself, meanwhile, has been 

touted as a candidate to replace Anas.       X     

55 But analysts said the most probable 

candidates would be party secretary-

general and Yudhoyono‟s son Edhie 

“Ibas” Baskoro Yudhoyono and 

Indonesian Army chief of staff and 

Yudhoyono‟s brother-in-law Gen. 

Pramono Edhie Wibowo.       X     

56    the most probable candidates would be 

party secretary-general and Yudhoyono‟s 

son Edhie “Ibas” Baskoro Yudhoyono 

and Indonesian Army chief of staff and 

Yudhoyono‟s brother-in-law Gen. 

Pramono Edhie Wibowo.     X       

57   Anas, in his statement on Friday, said 

that the KPK‟s move to name him a 

suspect had involved “interference from 

those in power”       X     



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Clause Mat Men R V B E 

58 even 

though 

he said he still believed that the antigraft 

body would remain independent.       X     

59   he still believed that the antigraft body 

would remain independent.   X         

    TOTAL 19 8 8 24     

 

MATERIAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

2   Anas Urbaningrum  stepped 

down 

from his position as 

Democratic Party 

chairman 

  on Saturday 

6   the construction firm 

that 

won   the tender for the graft-ridden 

Hambalang sports complex 

project 

  

7     while 

serving 

 as a lawmaker in 2009,     

9   a press conference attended   by his loyalists at the party‟s 

central executive office 

in Jakarta 

11     Donning    the blue Democratic Party 

jacket 

  

20   It   doesn‟t 

take 

  a genius to be able to connect 

the dots, to see that all of these 

actions have been orchestrated 

against me 

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

22 but Anas made it 

clear 

    that “any kind of orchestration, 

no matter how sophisticated or 

how powerful the people behind 

it are, will surely be overcome 

  

26   Today, I am  making it 

clear 

      

29   Like a book, we   have 

merely 

flipped 

opened 

  the first page.   

31    this party  will be 

tested 

    In the 

following 

days, 

33   it   really 

adheres 

to its „clean, smart and 

ethical‟ slogan. 

    

38   he   would 

spill 

the beans on his political 

rivals within the party, 

including President 

Yudhoyono and his 

family, and supporters.   

  

41   Yudhoyono, as the 

party‟s supreme 

assembly chairman,   

has 

intensified 

communications with 

senior party members 

known to be his loyalists 

and eight other members 

of the assembly 

following Anas‟ 

statement.  

    



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Actor Process Goal Range Circumstance 

43   On Saturday night 

assembly members   

met     at 

Yudhoyono‟s 

residence in 

Cikeas, West 

Java. 

45   the meeting   was 

supposed 

to be held 

    on Sunday. 

46   The assembly   would be 

preparing 

organizational steps 

following Anas‟ 

resignation, such as 

appointing an acting 

chairman before holding 

an extraordinary congress 

to elect Anas‟ definitive 

successor, according to 

Marzuki. 

    

48   Yudhoyono and his 

close supporters  

had been 

launching 

 efforts to secure support 

from party branches in 

provinces, municipalities 

and regencies in hopes 

that support from the 

regional executives could 

be secured during the 

upcoming election. 

    

50   the regional executives  could be 

secured 

 during the upcoming 

election.   

  

53   According to the 

source, the 

is slated 

to be held 

      on Tuesday 

in Bali. 



extraordinary congress 

 

MENTAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

12 

  he  knew that he would be named a 

suspect before the KPK 

announced it on Friday, 

suggesting that it was part of a 

systematic plot against him.   

17 

  I  had 

known 

since the party‟s supreme 

assembly issued a decision 

containing a provision ordering 

me to focus on my legal 

problems   

32 

  We  will see  if it really adheres to its 

„clean, smart and ethical‟ 

slogan.   

34 

  We  will 

learn  

if it is instead just the opposite. 

  

37 

  Anas‟ statement  could be 

seen 

 as a sign that he would spill 

the beans on his political rivals 

within the party, including 

President Yudhoyono and his 

family, and supporters.   

42   senior party members   known to be his loyalists   

49 

and regencies  in hopes  that support from the regional 

executives   



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Senser Process Phenomenon Circumstances 

59 

  he  still 

believed  

that the antigraft body would 

remain independent.   

 

RELATIONAL (IDENTIFYING) PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 
Conj. Identified Process Identifier Circumstances 

15   it  
was part 

of 
 a systematic plot against him.   

30   There are 
so many pages waiting to be 

unveiled, for our own good. 
  

56    the most probable candidates  
would 

be 

 party secretary-general and 

Yudhoyono‟s son Edhie “Ibas” 

Baskoro Yudhoyono and 

Indonesian Army chief of staff 

and Yudhoyono‟s brother-in-

law Gen. Pramono Edhie 

Wibowo. 

  

 

RELATIONAL (ATTRIBUTIVE) PROCESS 

Clause Conj. Carrier Process Attribute Circumstances 

4   his downfall  
 was not 

the end 

of the ongoing political 

struggle within the ruling party 
  

25   a graft suspect  
was not 

the end 
 of his battle.   



Clause Conj. Carrier Process Attribute Circumstances 

27   that this  is just the beginning   

28 and this  is still very far from the end.   

35 if it  is  instead just the opposite.   

 

VERBAL PROCESS 

Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

1    the Corruption 

Eradication 

Commission 

(KPK), 

charged    

  

  A day after 

being 

criminally 

3 but   warned    that his downfall was not 

the end of the ongoing 

political struggle within the 

ruling party. 

his foes 

  

5   Anas, who   has been 

accused 

  of accepting a gratuity from 

the construction firm that 

won the tender for the 

graft-ridden Hambalang 

sports complex project 

  

  

8     announced    his resignation in a press 

conference attended by his 

loyalists 

   at the party‟s 

central 

executive 

office in 

Jakarta. 

10   Donning the blue 

Democratic Party 

jacket, Anas   

told     reporters  

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

13   he   would be 

named 

  a suspect before the KPK 

announced it on Friday, 

suggesting that it was part 

of a systematic plot against 

him. 

  

  

14   before the KPK  announced    it on Friday     

16   he  said “I had known since 

the party‟s supreme 

assembly issued a 

decision containing a 

provision ordering 

me to focus on my 

legal problems,” 

    

  

18     referring   to party chief patron and 

supreme assembly 

chairman President Susilo 

Bambang Yudho-yono‟s 

eight policies to restore the 

party‟s reputation and 

electability. 

  

  

19   he  said “It doesn‟t take a 

genius to be able to 

connect the dots, to 

see that all of these 

actions have been 

orchestrated against 

me,” 

    

  

21   all of these actions   have been 

orchestrated 

  against me   

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

23   The young 

politician  

said   the KPK‟s decision to 

name him a graft suspect 

was not the end of his 

battle. 

  

  

24   the KPK‟s 

decision   

to name   him a graft suspect was not 

the end of his battle. 

  

  

36   Siti Zuhro, a 

political analyst 

from the 

Indonesian 

Institute of 

Sciences (LIPI),  

said    that Anas‟ statement could 

be seen as a sign that he 

would spill the beans on his 

political rivals within the 

party, including President 

Yudhoyono and his family, 

and supporters. 

  

  

39   she  said “Anas was basically 

saying that he would, 

little by little, unveil 

the party‟s dirty 

laundry to the 

public,”  

    

  

40   Anas  was 

basically 

saying 

   that he would, little by 

little, unveil the party‟s 

dirty laundry to the public 

  

  

44   Earlier, House of 

Representatives 

Speaker Marzuki 

Alie  

said    that the meeting was 

supposed to be held on 

Sunday. 

  

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

47   Sources within the 

party, however,  

said    that Yudhoyono and his 

close supporters had been 

launching efforts to secure 

support from party 

branches in provinces, 

municipalities and 

regencies in hopes that 

support from the regional 

executives could be 

secured during the 

upcoming election. 

  

  

51   A party source  said   that later on Saturday, 

Yudhoyono talked with 

various party provincial 

leaders in a teleconference 

from his home. 

  

  

52   Yudhoyono  talked     with 

various 

party 

provincial 

leaders 

 in a 

teleconference 

from his 

home. 

54   Marzuki himself, 

meanwhile,  

has been 

touted 

   as a candidate to replace 

Anas. 

  

  



Clause 

No. 

Conj. Sayer Process Quoted Reported Receiver circumstances 

55 but analysts  said   the most probable 

candidates would be party 

secretary-general and 

Yudhoyono‟s son Edhie 

“Ibas” Baskoro Yudhoyono 

and Indonesian Army chief 

of staff and Yudhoyono‟s 

brother-in-law Gen. 

Pramono Edhie Wibowo. 

  

  

57   Anas, in his 

statement on 

Friday,  

said    that the KPK‟s move to 

name him a suspect had 

involved “interference from 

those in power” 

  

  

58 even he  said   he still believed that the 

antigraft body would 

remain independent. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 1. THE JAKARTA POST (Anas arrives at KPK for further questioning) 

     Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1     Democratic Party chairman, 

Anas Urbaningrum, 

arrived at the Corruption Eradication 

Commission's (KPK) headquarters on 

Wednesday at 9:55 a.m for second round 

of questioning over graft allegations 

surrounding the construction of the 

Hambalang Sports Complex in West Java. 

  
"I'm happy that the information gathered from me during the previous questioning session will be deepened. It shows that 

my information has helped the KPK to uncover what actually happened with the Hambalang case," he told reporters before 

entering the commission's building in Jakarta 

2     I „m happy that the information gathered 

from me during the previous questioning 

session will be deepened. It shows that my 

information has helped the KPK to uncover 

what actually happened with the 

Hambalang case," 

3     he told reporters before entering the 

commission's building in Jakarta. 

 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

4     He also thanked the KPK for working in a 

speedy and professional manner to solve 

the case  

5 so that     the commission could follow up on a 

number of other important cases. 

  "What I want to emphasize is that the KPK has to investigate the Hambalang case with objectivity in line with prevailing 

legal procedures," Anas said. 

6 What     
I want to emphasize is that the KPK has to 

investigate the Hambalang case with 

objectivity in line with prevailing legal 

procedures 

7     Anas said 

8     Former Democratic Party 

treasurer Muhammad 

Nazaruddin, 

who was convicted for accepting bribes 

surrounding the SEA Games' athletes' 

village graft case,  

9 repeatedly     
accused Anas of having been involved in 

the Rp 1.52 trillion (US$161.12 million) 

Hambalang project. 

10     Nazaruddin 
alleged that the money Anas received from 

the project was spent on financing his 

campaign and election to become party 

chairman during the 2010 Democratic 

Party congress in Bandung. 

TOTAL 3 7 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 2. THE JAKARTA POST (Anas resigns as Democratic Party chief) 

     Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1 After     spending the night in silence following the 

Corruption Eradication Commission's 

(KPK) announcement  

2 that      he had been named a suspect 

3     Anas Urbaningrum has finally announced his resignation from 

the post of the Democratic Party chief. 

  "My personal ethical standards, which run in harmony with the party's integrity pact, led me to quit my job as party chief 

once the KPK had named me a suspect. I officially announce my resignation from the post," Anas told a press conference 

on Saturday. 

4     My personal ethical 

standards, 

 which run in harmony with the party's 

integrity pact, led me to quit my job as 

party chief once the KPK had named me a 

suspect. 

5     I officially announce my resignation from 

the post, 

6     Anas told a press conference on Saturday. 

7     Anas then thanked everyone in the party for their 

support throughout the last two-and-a half- 

years. 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

8     He 

expected that whoever would replace him 

as party chairman would be able to 

perform better than he did. 

9     Commenting on his legal status as a graft suspect, 

10     Anas unveiled that despite the accusations of his 

involvement in graft cases, 

11     he was confident that he would be cleared. 

12     Anas said that he had nothing to worry about 

simply  

13 because     

he had nothing to do with the accusations, 

14 which     were mainly made by former party 

colleague Muhammad Nazaruddin, 

15     who had been sentenced to prison over graft 

accusations. 

  
"I knew that I would be named a suspect after the two were announcements made, the first announcement urging the KPK 

to immediately define my legal status and the ssecond going even further by ordering me to focus on my legal problems, 

as if I had already been named a suspect," he said. 

 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

16     I  knew that I would be named a suspect 

after the two were announcements made, 

the first announcement urging the KPK to 

immediately define my legal status and the 

ssecond going even further by ordering me 

to focus on my legal problems, as if I had 

already been named a suspect 

17     he said 

18     Anas 

was referring to Democratic Party chief 

patron Susilo Bambang Yudhoyono, 

19     who made the two announcements. 

20 Therefore,     Anas rest assured 

21 that     his legal status was the result of political 

work rather than law enforcement. 

  "It doesn't take a genius to be able to see that my case is more political action than legal action," he said. 

22     It doesn't take a genius to be able to see that 

my case is more political action than legal 

action, 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

23     he said 

24     Anas then cited that from a political 

perspective, 

25     his legal status could be seen as the climax of the 

internal resentment 

26 that     he had sensed from the moment he 

claimed the chairman post in 2010. 

  "I have felt that my chairmanship was actually unwanted," he said. 

27     I have felt that my chairmanship was 

actually unwanted, 

28     he said 

29 But     then he refused to elaborate, 

30     saying that there will be  proper time for him to 

unveil the rest of the story. 

31     At the end of his speech, Anas said that what has happened to him 

was only the beginning, 

32 and     was still very far from the end. 

  “This is like opening the first page of a book. There are so many pages waiting to be unveiled,” he said. 

33 

  

  This is like opening the first page of a book. 

34 

  

  there are so many pages waiting to be unveiled 

35     he said. 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

36     The statement then opened the possibility 

37 that     more party officials could be found guilty 

in days to come. 

TOTAL 10 - 27  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 3. THE JAKARTA POST (Anas says the battle has just begun) 

     

Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1 A day after      being criminally charged by the Corruption Eradication  

Commission (KPK), 

2     Anas 

Urbaningrum 

on Saturday stepped down from his position as Democratic 

Party chairman 

3 but     warned his foes that his downfall was not the end of the 

ongoing political struggle within the ruling party. 

4     Anas who has been accused of accepting a gratuity from the 

construction firm that won the tender for the graft-ridden 

Hambalang sports complex project while serving as a lawmaker 

in 2009, 

5     announced his resignation in a press conference attended by his loyalists at 

the party‟s central executive office in Jakarta. 

6     Donning the blue Democratic Party jacket, 

7     Anas told reporters he knew that he would be named a suspect before 

the KPK announced it on Friday, suggesting that it was part of a 

systemic plot against him. 

  “I had known since the party‟s supreme assembly issued a decision containing a provision ordering me to focus on my legal 

problems,” he said, referring to party chief patron and supreme assembly chairman President Susilo Bambang Yudho-yono‟s 

eight policies to restore the party‟s reputation and electability. 

8     I had known since the party‟s supreme assembly issued a 

decision containing a provision ordering me to focus on my 

legal problems, 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

9     he said, referring to party chief patron and supreme assembly 

chairman President Susilo Bambang Yudho-yono‟s eight 

policies to restore the party‟s reputation and electability. 

  “It doesn‟t take a genius to be able to connect the dots, to see that all of these actions have been orchestrated against me,” he 

said. 

10     it doesn‟t take a genius to be able to connect the dots, to see that 

all of these actions have been orchestrated against me, 

11     he said. 

12 But     
Anas made it clear that “any kind of orchestration, no matter 

how sophisticated or how powerful the people behind it are, 

will surely be overcome. 

13     The young 

politician 
said the KPK‟s decision to name him a graft suspect was not 

the end of his battle. 

  "Today, I am making it clear that this is just the beginning and this is still very far from the end. Like a book, we have 

merely flipped opened the first page. There are so many pages waiting to be unveiled, for our own good."  

14     Today,  I am making it clear that this is just the beginning and this is 

still very far from the end. 

15 Like a book,     we have merely flipped opened the first page. 

16     There are so many pages waiting to be unveiled, for our own good." 

  "In the following days, this party will be tested. We will see if it really adheres to its 'clean, smart and ethical' slogan. We 

will learn if it is instead just the opposite," he went on. 

17     In the following 

days, 

this party will be tested. We will see if it really adheres to its 

'clean, smart and ethical' slogan. We will learn if it is instead 

just the opposite, 

18     he went on 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

19     Siti Zuhro, a 

political analyst 

from the 

Indonesian 

Institute of 

Sciences (LIPI), 

said that Anas' statement could be seen as a sign that he would 

spill the beans on his political rivals within the party, including 

President Yudhoyono and his family, and supporters. 

  "Anas was basically saying that he would, little by little, unveil the party's dirty laundry to the public," she said. 

20     Anas was basically saying that he would, little by little, unveil the 

party's dirty laundry to the public, 

21     she said. 

22     Yudhoyono, as 

the party's 

supreme 

assembly 

chairman, 

 has intensified communications with senior party members 

known to be his loyalists and eight other members of the 

assembly following Anas‟ statement.  

23     On Saturday 

night, 
assembly members met at Yudhoyono‟s residence in Cikeas, 

West Java. 

24 Earlier,      House of Representatives Speaker Marzuki Alie said that the 

meeting was supposed to be held on Sunday. 

25     The Assembly would be preparing organizational steps following Anas‟ 

resignation, such as appointing an acting chairman before 

holding an extraordinary congress to elect Anas‟ definitive 

successor, according to Marzuki. 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

26     Sources within 

the party, 
 however, said that Yudhoyono and his close supporters had 

been launching efforts to secure support from party branches in 

provinces, municipalities and regencies in hopes that support 

from the regional executives could be secured during the 

upcoming election. 

27     A party source said that later on Saturday, Yudhoyono talked with various 

party provincial leaders in a teleconference from his home. 

28 According to the 

source, 

     the extraordinary congress is slated to be held on Tuesday in 

Bali. 

29     Marzuki himself, meanwhile, has been touted as a candidate to replace Anas. 

30 But     analysts said the most probable candidates would be party 

secretary-general and Yudhoyono‟s son Edhie “Ibas” Baskoro 

Yudhoyono and Indonesian Army chief of staff and 

Yudhoyono‟s brother-in-law Gen. Pramono Edhie Wibowo. 

31     Anas, in his statement on Friday, said that the KPK's move to name 

him a suspect had involved "interference from those in power", 

32 even though     he said he still believed that the antigraft body would remain 

independent. 

TOTAL 8  24  

 

 

 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 1. JAKARTA GLOBE (Anas Wants Hambalang Graft Case to Be 'Free From Politics') 

     

Clause No. Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1     Chairman of Democratic 

Party Anas Urbaningrum 

asked people on Wednesday to stop injecting 

politics into the investigation of the graft-laden 

Hambalang Sport Center project. 

  "We should follow the process painstakingly and objectively in a way to keep this legal process on the right track," Anas 

said as he arrived at the Corruption Eradication Commission (KPK) office for a second round questioning. 

2     We should follow the process painstakingly and 

objectively in a way to keep this legal process 

on the right track, 

3     Anas said as he arrived at the Corruption Eradication 

Commission (KPK) office for a second round 

questioning. 

4     Anas also said he hoped the commission would speed 

up the investigation to clear his name. 

  "I hope Hambalang [investigation] process can be done quickly and totally so that my status is clear," Anas said. "The 

KPK can then move on to other cases." 

5     I hope Hambalang [investigation] process can be 

done quickly and totally so that my status is 

clear, 

6     Anas said. 

 



Clause No. Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

7     The KPK can then move on to other cases. 

8 But     Anas ' case has stemmed from his political 

position - and his party. 

9     He 

was accused by former Democratic treasurer 

and fellow party member Muhammad 

Nazaruddin for receiving a kickback of Rp 100 

billion ($10.7 million) from construction 

company Adhi Karya in relation to the 

Hambalang project. 

10     Nazaruddin also accused Anas of using the money for his 

campaign for the party's chairman slot. 

11     Anas' plight has also been called an anchor to the 

Democratic Party's integrity. 

12     
President Susilo 

Bambang Yudhoyono  

recently said that members alleged involvement 

in corruption has caused the party's popularity 

to sink. 

13     

Yudhoyono, 

who is the head of Democratic Party's advisory 

board, 

14     said 

that party members who could not keep 

themselves away from corruption should resign. 

 

 

 



Clause No. Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

15 Though     
Yudhoyono did not mention Anas by name, 

16     
senior party member 

Ruhut Sitompul 

said that Yudhoyono was specifically referring 

to Anas, among several other members. 

TOTAL 2  14  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 2. JAKARTA GLOBE (Antigraft Activists Prepare Monas for Anas) 

     

Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1     Anti-corruption activists installed a symbolic gallows at the 

National Monumen (Monas) on Sunday as 

a macabre reminder for former Democratic 

Party chair Anas Urbaningrum. 

2     Anas stepped down from his post as chairman of 

Indonesia's ruling party on Saturday, one 

day after the Corruption Eradication 

Comission (KPK) publicly charged him 

with allegedly accepting bribes. 

3     Anas who was once seen as a promising a 

member of President Susilo Bambang 

Yudhoyono's party, 

4 famously,     promised to hang himself from Monas if 

he was found guilty of corruption. 

5     The Anti-Corruption Youth 

Movement (Gepak) 

said they were cleaning up Monas to 

remind Anas of his promise.  

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

  " We are trying to help Anas keep his promise," said Toriq Mahmud, the organization's leader. "We have prepared 

facilities for him to realize his promise by proving a hanging pole and a rope." 

6     We are trying to help Anas keep his promise, 

7     said Toriq Mahmud, the organization's leader. 

8     We have prepared facilities for him to realize 

his promise by proving a hanging pole and 

a rope. 

9     The activists  gave Anas a second option: publicly 

apologize to the people of Indonesia. 

  "But he must bluntly reveal who was really involved in the Hambalang corruption cases," Toriq said 

10 But      he must bluntly reveal who was really 

involved in the Hambalang corruption 

cases, 

11     Toriq said. 

12     Anas 
was charged with allegedly using bribe 

funds to purchase a high-end Toyota SUV. 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

13     He 
repotedly received the funds from 

construction companies Adhi Karya and 

Wijaya Karya in exchange for the contract 

for the Hambalang sports center in Bogor, 

West Java. 

14     He  faces between four and 20 years in prison 

if convicted 

15     Anas maintains his innocence  

16 and     
claims the accusations are part of a plot to 

oust him from Democratic Party. 

TOTAL 3  13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THEMATIC STRUCTURE 

Article 3. JAKARTA GLOBE (Anas Quizzed Over House Role in Hambalang) 

     

Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

1     Anas Urbaningrum the 

former Democratic Party 

chairman 

faced a four-hour grilling on Monday by antigraft 

investigators over a graft scandal that occured 

while he served at the House of Representatives 

2 and     for which he has been charged. 

3     Anas  arrived at the Corruption Eradication Commission 

(KPK) office in South Jakarta just before 1 p.m. 

accompanied by his lawyer, Firman Wijaya and 

Saan Mustofa, a deputy secretary general of the 

Democratic Party. 

4     He told reporters 

5 that     he had been called in to testify as a witness 

against three other suspects charged with 

corruption in connection with the project to build 

a Rp 2.5 trillion ($260 million) sports center in 

Hamblang, Bogor district. 

6     He said that of the three suspects, 

7     he was only acquainted with one: Andi 

Mallarangeng, the former sports minister. 

 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

8     The two others are Deddy Kusdinar, a former ministry official, 

and Teuku Bagus Muhammad Noer, a director at 

Adhi Karya, one of the two state construction 

companies that won the contract to build the 

sports center. 

  “Because I was testifying about three people, there were a lot of questions and it took quite long,” Anas said. 

9 Because      I was testifying about three people, there were a 

lot of questions and it took quite long, 

10     Anas said. 

11     I  hope that my testimony can be of use to the KPK 

in investigating this case. 

12     He 
added that the investigators also asked him about 

his time as a legislator on House Commission X, 

13 which     
oversees sports affairs and which approved the 

vastly inflated budget for the construction project 

that was initially expected to cost just Rp 300 

billion. 

  “They asked me about my position on House Commission X and as the chairman of the House Democrats. They wanted to 

know what my duties were in both roles,” Anas said. 

14     They asked me about my position on House 

Commission X and as the chairman of the House 

Democrats. They wanted to know what my duties 

were in both roles, 

 

 



Clause 

No. 

Theme Rheme 

Textual Interpersonal  Topical 

15     Anas said. 

16     In their questioning 

last month of 

Adhyaksa Dault, 

 of Adhyaksa Dault, Andi‟s predecessor, the KPK 

investigators also probed the role of the House in the 

Hambalang case, indicating that they could name more 

legislators as possible suspects in the matter. 

17     Anas has been accused by Muhammad Nazaruddin, his former 

business partner and the Democrats‟ ex-treasurer of being 

involved in rigging the awarding of the Hambalang contract in 

exchange for Rp 100 billion in bribes. 

18     Nazaruddin 
is currently serving a seven-year prison sentence for a separate 

bid-rigging case linked to another Sports Ministry project. 

19     
Andi, a fellow 

Democrat, 

was also fingered by Nazaruddin and resigned last December 

after being named a suspect. 

20     The Supreme Audit 

Agency (BPK) has concluded the project caused Rp 243 billion in state losses. 

21     It 

 attributed the losses to problems in acquiring the land for the 

sports center, irregularities in the Sports Ministry‟s application 

for multi-year financing, and the questionable appointment of 

contractors. 

TOTAL 4 17 


